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FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Management of FINCA Universal Credit Organization Closed Joint Stock Company (the “Organization”) is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the financial position of The
Organization as at December 31, 2020, and the related statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income for
the year then ended, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and of significant accounting
policies and notes to the financial statements (the “financial statements”) in compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:

. Properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

° Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

. Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the Organization’s financial position and financial performance; and

“ Making an assessment of the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

e  Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout
the Organization;

. Maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Organization’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Organization,
and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Organization comply with IFRS;

. Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and accounting standards
of the Republic of Armenia;

e  Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Organization; and
® Preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 were approved by the Management
of the Organization on May 4, 2021.

Aram Ghazaryan @ Petrosvan

Chief Executive Officer "",3 5E /f:manaal Officer / Chief Accountant
% A *
A Yy . 1"3
May 4, 2021 N9 4y w0 1‘C1ay4 2021

Yerevan, Republic of Armenia 7 Yerevan, Republic of Armenia
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of FINCA Universal Credit Organization Closed Joint Stock Company:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of FINCA Universal Credit Organization Closed
Joint Stock Company (the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Organization as at December 31 2020, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Organization in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, is of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of member firms, each of
which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.com/about for a detailed description of
the legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms. Please see
www.deloitte.com/ru/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of Deloitte CIS.

© 2021 Deloitte Armenia CJSC. All rights reserved.




Why the matter was determined to be a key
audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Assessment of expected credit losses (ECL)
on loans to customers

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Organization reported Loans to customers at
amortized cost of 24,298,801 thousand AMD
and 26,260,402 thousand AMD and ECL of
4,488,569 thousand AMD and 2,338,487
thousand AMD respectively.

For loans assessed on a collective basis, there
is a risk of errors in the underlying data used
in assessment of the ECL, and assumptions
used in assessing probability of default (PD),
loss given default data (LGD) and
inconsistency of historical and forward-
looking information with available market
based data.

Due to the significance and subjectivity of
judgements used by management of the
Organization, the volume of loans assessed
on a collective basis and increased
judgement and estimation uncertainty as a
result of COVID-19, we identified the
collective assessment of expected credit
losses, particularly the assessment of the
probability of default, as a key audit matter.

In particular we focused our procedures on
the following issues:

. The principal assumptions and
significant inputs underlying the
estimation of ECL and corresponding
risk rating system for performing
loans and the integrity of the models
to make those calculations;

° Timely identification of significant
increase in credit risk and event of
default based on quantitative and
qualitative factors;

. Accuracy of the stages classification.

We obtained understating of the process and
control procedures over loan origination,
credit risk management and measurement of
the ECL for collectively assessed loans,
including the controls over the timely
identification of significant increase in credit
risk.

We challenged the key assumptions used in
collective ECL models, tested input data and
analyzed the integrity of those models.

Our work included the following procedures:

. With the involvement of our actuarial
and internal valuation specialists, we
tested the mathematical accuracy and
computation of the ECL on loans to
customers assessed on a collective basis
by re-performing and calculating
elements of the expected credit losses
based on relevant source data. This
included assessing the appropriateness
of model design and formulas used,
considering modelling techniques and
recalculating PDs, LGDs and Exposure at
default;

. We analyzed the principal assumptions

in respect of loan falling into default and
any recoveries expected from defaulted
loans with reference to our knowledge
of industry practices, the Organization’s
actual experience and available and
relevant forward looking information;

) For sample of loans, we ascertain
whether the significant increase in credit
risk had been identified in a timely
manner including, where relevant,
we analyzed borrower’s financial and
non-financial information, overdue days
and checked other relevant impairment
events such as forbearance and certain
financial performance indicators had
been identified on a timely manner and
had reflected the impact of COVID-19.

° On a sample basis, we tested the

accuracy and completeness of the key



Why the matter was determined to be a key How the matter was addressed in the audit
audit matter

Refer to Notes 4, 6 and 25 to the financial underlying input data (aging, exposure at
statements. default, recovery of loans after default,
forward looking information).

We assessed the accuracy and completeness
of the disclosures in the financial statements
relating to the loans to customers to ensure
compliance with IFRS requirements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Annual report of the Organization for 2020, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The 2020 Annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing

the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial
reporting process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh t ublic interest benefits of such communication.

Srbuhi Hakobyan
Executive Director
Audit Partner

Deloitte Armenia CISC
May 4, 2021



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

December 31, December 31,
Note 2020 2019

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 5 724,687 703,595
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 152 -
Investment securities at amortized cost 25 - 1,191,045
Loans to customers 6 19,810,232 23,921,915
Current income tax assets 35,814 85,269
Right-of-use assets 9 447,912 716,814
Property and equipment 7 178,728 283,504
Intangible assets 8 253,591 332,469
Other assets 10 83,754 65,415
TOTAL ASSETS 21,538,870 27,304,026
LIABILITIES:

Liabilities under repurchase agreements 25 - 1,223,359
Debt securities issued 11 5,030,607 4,940,835
Lease liabilities 9 510,764 784,918
Other borrowed funds 12,23 9,562,356 12,513,956
Deferred income tax liabilities 20 33,322 252,695
Other liabilities 13,25 572,409 361,275
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,709,458 20,077,042
EQUITY:

Share capital 15 4,905,960 4,905,960
Retained earnings 923,452 2,321,024
TOTAL EQUITY 5,829,412 7,226,984
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 21,538,870 27,304,026

Aram Ghazaryan
Chief Executive Officer

May 4, 2021
Yerevan, Republic of Armenia

The notes on pages 10-65 form an integral part of these financial statements.

" Yerevan, Republic of Armenia




FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2020 2019
Interest income 16 6,499,827 6,961,770
Interest expense 16,26 (1,536,214) (1,544,856)
Net interest income before impairment losses on interest bearing assets 4,963,613 5,416,914
Impairment losses on interest bearing assets 5,6,25 (2,648,743) (1,047,755)
Net interest income 2,314,870 4,369,159
Modification loss on loans to customers 25 (155,631) (13,357)
Net gain from foreign exchange operations 17 89,400 160,547
Net gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL 17,833 21,375
Fee and commission expense (14,611) (21,880)
Other gains 18 67,439 34,519
Other losses 19,13 (340,412) -
Net non-interest (expense)/income (335,982) 181,204
Operating income 1,978,888 4,550,363
Staff costs (1,748,827) (1,996,299)
Depreciation and amortization 7,8,9 (468,060) (483,968)
Other operating expenses 21,26 (812,091) (924,825)
Operating expenses (3,028,978) (3,405,092)
(Loss)/profit before income tax (1,050,090) 1,145,271
Income tax benefit/(expense) 20 148,518 (221,231)
Net (loss)/profit for the year (901,572) 924,040
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (901,572) 924,040

The notes on pages 11-65 form an integral part of these financial statements.




FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Share capital Retained earnings Total equity
Balance as at January 1, 2019 4,905,960 2,812,385 7,718,345
Profit for the year - 924,040 924,040
Total comprehensive income for the year - 924,040 924,040
Dividends declared 15 - (1,415,401) (1,415,401)
Balance as at December 31, 2019 4,905,960 2,321,024 7,226,984
Loss for the year - (901,572) (901,572)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (901,572) (901,572)
Dividends declared 15 - (496,000) (496,000)
Balance as at December 31, 2020 4,905,960 923,452 5,829,412

The notes on pages 11-65 form an integral part of these financial statements.




FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
(Loss)/profit before tax (1,050,090) 1,145,271
Adjustments for:
Impairment losses on interest bearing assets 5,6,25 2,648,743 1,047,755
Gain from lease termination 9 (15,336) -
Gain from lease concession 9 (11,854) -
Net change in accrued interest (1,009,439) (440,419)
Depreciation and amortization 468,060 483,968
Modification loss on loans to customers 25 155,631 13,357
Foreign exchange translation loss, net 17 37,764 8,471
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 1,223,479 2,258,403
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (152) 348
Decrease/(increase) in loans to customers 2,866,478 (677,509)
Decrease in other assets 18,339 90,634
(Decrease)/increase in liabilities under repurchase agreements (1,209,687) 267,467
Decrease/(increase) in other liabilities 210,767 (139,771)
Cash inflows from operating activities before taxation 3,109,224 1,799,572
Income tax paid (21,400) (228,746)
Net cash from operating activities 3,087,824 1,570,826
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal and redemption of investments securities 1,221,451 -
Purchase of property and equipment (24,990) (71,825)
Purchase of intangible assets (24,012) (133,444)
Net cash used in investing activities 1,172,449 (205,269)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid (496,000) (1,415,401)
Repayment of lease liabilities 14 (227,917) (199,346)
Proceeds from borrowed funds 14 10,066,256 31,539,215
Repayment of borrowed funds 14 (13,832,651) (31,726,406)
Proceeds from debt securities issued - 3,462,754
Repayment of debt securities issued - (3,409,407)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,490,312) (1,748,591)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (230,039) (383,034)
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of the year (gross) 5 704,494 936,412
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents
held in foreign currencies 250,239 151,116
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year (gross) 5 724,694 704,494
Supplementary information:
Interest received 5,106,198 6,239,320
Interest paid (1,523,227) (1,506,675)

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 the Organization obtained as non-cash
settlements for uncollectible loans to customers in the form of asset repossession in the amount of AMD

19,149 thousand.

The notes on pages 11-65 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

FINCA Universal Credit Organization cjsc (the “Organization”) is a closed joint stock Organization - 100%
subsidiary of FINCA Microfinance Codperatief U.A. (Netherlands). The Organization is regulated by the
Central Bank of Armenia (the “CBA”) and conducts its business under license number 13, granted on

28 March 2006.

The Organization is involved in microfinance and provides individual business, consumer and rural loans.
The loans are disbursed both in local and foreign currencies.

The registered office of the Organization is located at 2a, Agatangeghos str., Yerevan, Republic of
Armenia.

As at December 31, 2020 the Organization had 39 branches operating in Armenia (December 31, 2019:
39 branches). On January 11, 2021 the Company reorganized the branch network and closed 9 branches
by merging them with the closest branches.

The founder of FINCA UCO CJSC is FINCA International, Inc., a tax-exempt not-for-profit corporation
incorporated and existing under the laws of the state of New York. In 2011 FINCA International, Inc.
transferred 100% of issued shares (136,472 shares) of the Organization to FINCA Microfinance
Cooperatief U.A. (a cooperative with exclusion on liability, having its official seat in Amsterdam, the
Netherlands) as a member contribution to the Cooperative.

As of December 31, 2020, the members of the Cooperative were:

1. FINCA MICROFINANCE HOLDING COMPANY LLC, a limited liability company registered under the
laws of the State of Delaware, United States of America and having its registered address at 2711
Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808, United States of America. FINCA
MICROFINANCE HOLDING COMPANY LLC holds 99 voting rights as a Member A and 1 voting right as
a Member B of the Cooperative.

2. FINCA INTERNATIONAL LLC, a limited liability company registered under the laws of the State of
Maryland, United States of America and having its registered address at 11 East Chase Street,
Baltimore, Maryland 21202, United States of America. FINCA INTERNATIONAL LLC holds 1% voting
right of the Cooperative.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 the following shareholders owned FINCA MICROFINANCE HOLDING
COMPANY LLC:

December 31,2020 December 31,2019

First level shareholders/ holders of the issued share capital:

FINCA International LLC 65.89% 62.93%
International Finance Corporation 14.27% 14.27%
KfW 8.87% 8.87%
Nederlandse Financierings Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. 7.25% 7.25%
Credit Suisse Microfinance Fund Management Company - 2.96%
ASN-NOVIB FONDS 1.66% 1.66%
Triodos Custody B.V. 1.03% 1.03%
Triodos SICAV Il 1.03% 1.03%
Total 100.00 100.00%

11



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

FINCA International Inc. is a not-for-profit corporation under the laws of the United State of America and
as such, its Members hold no ownership in the Organization and have no economic rights. As at
December 31, 2020 the Members of FINCA International, Inc. are as follows: Rupert Scofield, John Hatch,
Robert Hatch and Richard Williamson. FINCA International Inc. produces publicly available financial
statements.

FINCA International Inc. provides low-income people around the world the tools they need to succeed, by
offering responsible financial services, such as small loans or savings accounts; by reaching people in
remote communities using technology like mobile phones and tablets; and by providing access to life-
enhancing products. FINCA operates in communities through affiliated organizations (“affiliates”).

The affiliates are typically separate legal entities that enter into affiliate agreements with FINCA. Small
loans support investment in individual or community productive micro enterprises. Participants build
self-reliance, self-esteem, and a savings fund that remains within the community as a permanent source
of capital for continued investment.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The following amendments and interpretations are effective for the Organization effective January 1,

2020:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 Basic interest rate reform

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Materiality

Conceptual Framework Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS

Standards

The above standards and interpretations were reviewed by the Organization's management, but did not
have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Organization.

The Organization also early adopted the amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions. This
amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Applied
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8, but does not require revise prior periods.

Impact of the initial application of COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment to IFRS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) that provides
practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-
19, by introducing a practical expedient to IFRS 16. The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not
to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election shall account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent
concession the same way it would account for the change applying IFRS 16 if the change were not a lease
modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19
and only if all of the following conditions are met:

1) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

12



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

2) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021 (a
rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 June
2021 and increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2021); and

3) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

In the current financial year, the Organization has applied the amendment to IFRS 16 (as issued by the
IASB in May 2020) at effective date.

Impact on accounting for changes in lease payments applying the exemption

The Organization has applied the practical expedient retrospectively to all rent concessions that meet the
conditions in IFRS 16:46B, and has not restated prior period figures.

The Organization has benefited from reduced lease payments due on or before June 30, 2021.

The Organization has remeasured the lease liability using the revised lease payments and the discount
rate originally applied to the lease, resulting in a decrease in the lease liability of AMD 11,854 thousand,
which has been recognised as a negative variable lease payment in profit or loss. The Organization
continued to recognise interest expense on the lease liability.

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Organization has not applied the following
new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IAS 1 (as part of the project
to formulate Annual Improvements to IFRS

2010-2012 cycles) Classification of Liabilities as Short-Term or Long-Term
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
Amendments to IAS 16 Property and equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets -
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IAS 41; and
illustrative examples accompanying IFRS 16 Annual Improvements to IFRS 2018-2020 cycles

The management does not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Organization in future periods.

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Armenian Drams (“AMD thousand”), unless
otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Organization is a going concern and
will continue operation for the foreseeable future.
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Armenian business environment

Emerging markets such as Armenia are subject to different risks than more developed markets, including
economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations affecting businesses in
Armenia continue to change rapidly; tax and regulatory frameworks are subject to varying
interpretations. The future economic direction of Armenia is heavily influenced by the fiscal and
monetary policies adopted by the government, together with developments in the legal, regulatory, and
political environment.

Armenia continues to undergo political and economic changes. As an emerging market, Armenia does not
possess developed business and regulatory infrastructure that generally exists in a more mature free
market economy. In addition, economic conditions continue to limit the volume of activity in the financial
markets, which may not be reflective of the values for financial instruments. The main obstacle to further
economic development is a low level of economic and institutional development, along with a centralized
economic base, regional instability.

Adverse changes arising from systemic risks in global financial systems, including any tightening of the
credit environment could slow or disrupt the Armenian economy, adversely affect the Organization’s
operations, results of operations, financial conditions and prospects. In times of more severe market stress
the Armenian economy and the Organization’s performance may be exposed to deterioration.

CoviD-19

Further, starting from early 2020 a new coronavirus disease (COVID-19) has begun rapidly spreading all
over the world resulting in the announcement of the pandemic status by the World Health Organization in
March 2020. Measures put in place by many countries to contain the spread of COVID-19 are resulting in
significant operational disruption for many companies and have significant impact on global financial
markets. As the situation is rapidly evolving it may have a significant effect on business of many companies
across a wide range of sectors, including, but not limited to such impacts as disruption of business
operations as a result of interruption of production or closure of facilities, supply chain disruptions,
guarantines of personnel, reduced demand and difficulties in raising financing. As a result, the Organization
may face increasingly broad effects of COVID-19 as a result of its negative impact on the global economy
and major financial markets.

The Organization’s management monitors current changes in the economic situation and takes measures
that it considers necessary to maintain the stability and development of the Organization in the near
future. However, the significance of the effect of COVID-19 on the Organization’s business largely depends
on the duration and the incidence of the pandemic effects on the world and the Armenian economy. The
impact of changes in the economic environment on the future results of operations and the financial
position of the Organization is currently difficult to determine.

Political instability and military actions in the region

In September 2020, the long-standing Nagorno-Karabakh conflict was escalated with the break of
ceasefire regime, which was restored by a treaty signed by the parties involved on 10 November 2020.
Since then, Armenia has been in a political and economic turmoil. A number of protests against the
results of the treaty have led to extraordinary parliamentary elections being announced, which will be
held in June 2021.
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Further development of the situation may have significant effect on the Organization’s business, its
financial position and performance in the future, which is difficult to predict, given the degree of
uncertainties related to political instability.

Basis of preparation

The Organization maintains its accounting records in accordance with requirements of the Armenian
legislation. The Organization makes adjustments and reclassifications for the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Organization takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 and IFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realizable value in IAS 2 or value in use in I1AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The Organization presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months
after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in Note 25.

Going Concern
Management prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of the Organization’s assets and the settlement of the Organization’s liabilities in the normal

course of business.

The Organization incurred net loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounting AMD 901,572
thousand (2019: Net profit for the amounting AMD 924,040 thousand).

As at December 31, 2020, the Organization breached certain financial covenants required by some of its
borrowing agreements with international financial institutions relating to the portfolio quality and the
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positive profitability. The borrowed amounts as at reporting date, in respect of which the defaults had
taken place, amounted to AMD 5,187,236 thousand.

For the purposes of the Organization’s liquidity position analysis as at December 31, 2020, the
Organization includes all the borrowings from international financial institutions as on demand as
according to agreements with international institutions there are cross default clauses, see Note 25.

As at December 31, 2020 the Organization’s current liabilities presented on demand exceed current
assets presented up to one month by AMD 825,534 thousand (2019: AMD 2,809,678 thousand positive).
See note 25.

Management of the Organization believes that preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis is appropriate due to the followings:

1) Maintaining funding contingency plans and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios to comply with
regulatory requirements.

2) Asat December 31, 2020 and subsequent to the issuance date, the Organization did not receive any
notices on termination of further funding or notifications with claims of immediate repayment of any
loans from the lenders.

3) Subsequent to the reporting date, the Organization signed 2 new credit line agreements with local
banks in amount of AMD 1,583,885 thousand.

4) The Organization has also signed term-sheets with 2 new potential lenders for the borrowings of
AMD 4,180,720 thousand.

5) Subsequent to the reporting date, the Organization has re-paid loans in accordance with schedules
agreed in agreements without delays.

6) The Organization has performed significant cost cutting initiatives which resulted in profitable results
for January-February 2021 and is expecting net profit for 2021 year.

The management believes that, based on current forecasts and measures taken to manage liquidity,
taking into account the financial support of the shareholder, and also taking into account the economic
situation in the country in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic and the weakening of the national
currency, the Organization has enough funds to continue its activities in the foreseeable future.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Organization operates (“the functional currency”). Armenian dram (“AMD”) is
the currency of the RA and the Organization’s functional and presentation currency. All financial
information is presented rounded to the nearest thousands of dram, except when otherwise indicated.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in the statement of comprehensive income unless
required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in
the accounting policies of the Organization.
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The principal accounting policies are set out below. Accounting policies presented herein have been
consistently applied throughout the entire periods presented in these financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during
the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical cost are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences arising in retranslation are
recognized in comprehensive income in the month when they arise.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

The exchange rates used by the Organization in the preparation of the financial statements as at year-
end are as follows:

Average Rate Spot Rate
2020 2019 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
AMD/1 US Dollar 491.65 479.06 522.59 479.70
AMD/1 Euro 559.30 531.67 641.11 537.26

Interest income and expense recognition. Interest income and expense for financial instruments are
recognized in ‘Net interest income’ as ‘Interestincome’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the profit or loss account
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the
financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash
flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts.

The interest income/interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
non-creditimpaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any
expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortized cost of financial liabilities. For credit- impaired
financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses
(ECLs)).
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Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
Organization’s financial position when the Organization becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement. IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). IFRS 9 classification is generally based on the business model
in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows.

Financial assets. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Organization may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets.

On initial recognition, financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI, the Organization may irrevocably designate such financial asset to be
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Reclassification. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
period after the Organization changes its business model for managing financial assets. If the business
model under which the Organization holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that
results in reclassifying the Organization’s financial assets. During the current financial year and previous
accounting period there was no change in the business model under which the Organization holds
financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made. Changes in contractual cash flows are
considered under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets described
below.
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Impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. The new impairment model also applies to certain loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts but not to equity investments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than
under IAS 39.

The Organization recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the financial assets that
are not measured at FVTPL.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, ECLs are required
to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

° 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as
Stage 1); or

° Full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial
instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

Loss allowances for other receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured as the
present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Organization under the contract and
the cash flows that the Organization expects to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future

economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s effective interest rate (EIR).

The Organization measures ECL on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic
risk characteristics.

More information on measurement of ECLs is provided in note 25, including details on how instruments
are grouped when they are assessed on a collective basis.

The Organization’s financial assets classified into the measurement categories are as following:

Measurement
Financial assets Business Model SPPI Category
Hold to collect contractual cash Cash flows are solely payments of
Cash and cash equivalents  flows principal and interest Amortized cost
Derivative financial Cash flows are not solely
instruments Other business model payments of principal and interest FVTPL (Mandatory)
Hold to collect contractual cash Cash flows are solely payments of
Loans to customers flows principal and interest Amortized cost
Hold to collect contractual cash Cash flows are solely payments of
Investment securities flows principal and interest Amortized cost

Credit-impaired financial assets. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-
impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes
observable data about the following events:
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o Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Organization on terms that the Organization would not
consider otherwise;

e The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

e |tis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect of several events
may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Organization assesses whether debt
instruments that are financial assets measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each
reporting date.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration
in the borrower’s financial condition unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession
the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. For financial assets where concessions are contemplated but not granted the
asset is deemed credit-impaired when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including
meeting the definition of default.

The definition of default (see below) includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if amounts
are overdue for 90 days or more.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets. POCI financial assets are treated
differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these assets, the Organization
recognizes all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any changes
recognized in profit or loss. A favorable change for such assets creates an impairment gain. The
Organization did not purchase or originate any credit-impaired financial assets during years 2020 and
2019.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position. Loss allowances for ECL are
presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

e For financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

e For debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial
position as the carrying amount is at fair value;

e For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and

e Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Organization cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on
the drawn component: the Organization presents a combined loss allowance for both components.
The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets. A modification of a financial asset occurs when the
contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified
between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or
timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date.
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The Organization renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the risk of default. Loan terms are modified in cases where although the borrower made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default
has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised
terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the
cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due
(principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to other terms. When a financial asset is modified,
the Organization assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In accordance with the
Organization’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different
terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms
the Organization considers the following:

e (Quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash
flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts
discounted at the original EIR. If the difference in present value is greater than 10% the Organization
deems the arrangement is substantially different leading to derecognition.

e (Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI, change
in currency or change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

If the terms are substantially different, the Organization derecognizes the original financial asset and
recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new EIR for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Organization recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original EIR (or credit-
adjusted EIR for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The Organization derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows
expire (including expiry arising from modification with substantially different terms), or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to
another entity. If the Organization neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Organization recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Organization retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Organization
continues to recognize the financial asset.

Definition of default. Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of
default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is
based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which
affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Organization considers the following as constituting an event of default:

e The contract is past due more than 90 days; or
e The credit obligations reflected in the contract is unlikely to be paid to the Organization in full.

21



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of
assets. When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Organization takes into
account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and
non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The
Organization uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are either developed
internally or obtained from external sources.

The following diagram summarizes the impairment requirements under IFRS 9 (other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets):

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition) (Credit-impaired assets)
12-month expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses

Credit-impaired assets in Stage 3 undergo a probationary period of 6 months after the material credit
obligations of the Contract are met before moving to Stage 2.

Significant increase in credit risk. When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Organization considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Organization’s historical experience
and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking information. The objective of the assessment
is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

e The remaining lifetime PD as at the reporting date; with

e The remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of
the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations).

The Organization uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk:

e (Quantitative test based on movement in PD;
e Forbearance status; and

e A backstop of 30 days past due.

“Forbearance” occurs upon restructuring, i.e. prolongation in payment terms of payment of interest or
principal arising from a deterioration of a borrower’s financial condition such that it is not the same as it
was at the time of loan origination and a borrower has applied for a change in the payment schema of
the loan. Restructuring only occurs when the appropriate division of the Organization is reasonably
confident that a borrower is able to service the renewed payment schedule.

During 2020 a number of loans were provided 2 months grace period during the state of emergency
declared in the country and the lockdown imposed related to COVID-19 pandemic outbreak . All those
loans were reclassified to Stage 2, and subsequently after making six consecutive repayments without
any delays were considered as cured and transferred to Stage 1. The gross carrying amount of cured
loans in Stage 1 as of December 31, 2020 is AMD 3,017,218 thousand.
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Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the PD at initial recognition and at
subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a different PD. It is the weighting of
these different scenarios that forms the basis of a weighted average PD that is used to determine
whether credit risk has significantly increased. Forward-looking information includes the future prospects
of Armenia’s economy obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as consideration of various internal and
external sources of actual and forecast economic information.

Write-off. Financial assets are written off when the Organization has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the
Organization determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. The Organization may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off.
Recoveries resulting from the Organization’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains.

The write-off policy is determined by an analysis of recovery curves occurring congruently with IFRS 9
back-testing and model calibration to determine the point at which less than 10% (ten percent) of the
marginal remaining amount of a portfolio can be reasonably expected to be collected, up to a maximum
of 24 months in default (“MID”) for Stage 3 loans.

Three conditions must be considered in the analysis of the recovery curve before any reversion to expert
judgment due to ambiguity in interpretation of the steps below:

1) The shape of the curve — whether the curve’s acceleration function as defined by time towards the
lhighest or “ultimate” recovery rate is monotone (i.e. “gradual”) or rapid (i.e. “steep”);

2) The scale of the ultimate recovery rate — ranging between 0% to 100%, whether the magnitude of
recovery rate is large or small; and

3) Adoption of an absolute or relative application of the 10% criteria noted in the preceding paragraph
— whether after consideration of the condition no. 1 and 2 above, evidence of a monotone and large
scale requires application of a write-off criteria of the ultimate recovery rate less 10% (i.e. the
absolute application) or a rapid and small scale requires application of a criteria of the ultimate rate
multiplied by 0.9.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.

The net gain/loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘Net gain/(loss) on other financial instruments at FVTPL’ line item in the profit or loss
account.

Other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, debt securities issued are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. For details on EIR see the "net interest income
section" below.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities. The Organizatioin derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Organization’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Considering qualitative factors, quantitative factors and combined effect of qualitative and quantitative
factors. The Organization concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the following
gualitative factors:

Change the currency of the financial liability;
Change in collateral or other credit enhancement;
Inclusion of conversion option;

Change in the subordination of the financial liability.

For the quantitative assessment the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.

If the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification should be
recognized in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses.

Derivative financial instruments. The Organization enters into a variety of derivative financial
instruments some of which are held for trading while others are held to manage its exposure to interest
rate risk; credit risk; and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivative held include foreign exchange forward
contracts, interest rate swaps, cross currency interest rate swaps and credit default swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain/loss is
recognized in profit or loss immediately.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognized as a financial asset whereas a derivative with

a negative fair value is recognized as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset
or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not
expected to be realized or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or
current liabilities.

Net interest income. Interest income and expense for all financial instruments except for those classified
as held for trading or those measured or designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are
recognized in ‘Net interest income’ as ‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the profit or loss
account using the effective interest method. Interest on financial instruments measured as at FVTPL is
included within the fair value movement during the period, see ‘Net gain/(loss) on trading assets and
other financial assets measured at FVTPL and trading liabilities’ and ‘Net gain/(loss) on other financial
instruments at FVTPL'.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract
that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and
all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognized in profit or
loss at initial recognition.
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Fee and commission income/expense. Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than
those that are an integral part of EIR (see above). The fees included in this part of the Organization’s
statement of profit or loss include among other things fees charged for servicing a loan, non-utilization
fees relating to loan commitments when it is unlikely that these will result in a specific lending
arrangement and loan syndication fees.

Fee and commission expenses with regards to services are accounted for as the services are received.

In making the determination of whether recognizing changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI will create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Organization assesses whether it expects that
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk will be offset in profit or loss by a change in the fair
value of another financial instrument measured at FVTPL. This determination is made at initial
recognition.

Equity instruments. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Organization are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Organization’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain/loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Organization’s own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and amounts due from credit institutions with original
maturity of less or equal to 90 days and are free from contractual encumbrances.

Property and equipment. Property and equipment is carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognized impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is charged on the carrying value of property and equipment and is designed to write off
assets over their useful economic lives. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at the following
useful lives:

- Communication devices and computers — 3 years;
- Office equipment — 5 years;
- Vehicles — 5 years;
- Other — 5 years.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless
it is reasonably certain that the Organization will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term or renew
the lease term.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The
useful lives of software is determined 20 years and for licensees 4 years. Amortization is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure. Expenditure on research
activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
° The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. The ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

. The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

° The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill. At the end of each reporting period,
the Organization reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,

the Organization estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried

at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,

in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Taxation. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit before tax
as reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Organization’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in

a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Organization is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part

of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Organization expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Provisions. Provisions are recognised when the Organization has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Organization will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle

the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle

the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect

of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingencies. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are
disclosed unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not
recognised in the statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Collateral. The Organization obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered
appropriate. The collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives
the Organization a claim on these assets for both existing and future customer liabilities.

Segment reporting. An operating segment is a component of the Organization that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating
to transactions with other components of the Organization); whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Organization’s operations are highly integrated and constitute a single business segment for the
purposes of IFRS 8 Operating Segments. Management does not review separately the operating results of
any of the components of the Organization. Assets are concentrated primarily in the Republic of Armenia,
and the majority of revenues and profit is derived from operations in, and connected with, the Republic
of Armenia. The Chief Operating Decision Maker, in the case of the Organization, the Board of Directors,
only receives and reviews the information on the Organization as a whole. The Organization’s IFRS
operating results such as interest income, net interest income and net profit are regularly reviewed by
the Board of Directors to make decisions about the types of the Organization’s reportable segments in
order to assess its performance and future resources allocation.

In the application of the Organization’s accounting policies the Organization management is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
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historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Organization’s accounting policies the Organization management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and
major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is
included in the related notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance. The measurement of the ECL allowance for
financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models
and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., the likelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting losses).

A number of significant judgments are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

IFRS 9 COVID-19 and war relief measures

The Organization defines whether the COVID-19 pandemic is having an impact on a significant increase in
the credit risk of borrowers. The Organization has temporarily redefined the forbearance status by
applying Curing Procedure and “significant increase in credit risk” (SICR), thus adjusting the probability of
default given the pandemic effect. Curing Procedure applied to the only restructured loans for which a
forbearance flag may be removed that are those were current (with no overdue) prior to the
decree/crisis period and restructuring and are current in their restructured state and have completed
scheduled, consecutive payments for a period of six months.
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The Organization also applies macroeconomic forecasts that consider the impact of COVID-19 that is
available without bearing undue cost or effort.

The total amount of loans to customers in amortized cost which were modified during the financial year
ended December 31, 2020 is amounting AMD 12,342,547 thousand of which AMD 3,017,218 thousand
were cured during 2020 year. The significant part of the modified loans are attributable to COVID-19.

Number of clients were affected by the escalation of the military activities in Nagorno-Karabakh. Loans of
the war victims were written-off as of December 31, 2020 with a gross carrying amount of AMD 37,387
thousand. Loans where a close family member was affected were classified as Stage 3 loans which
resulted in loans with gross carrying amount of AMD 13,824 thousand to be reclassified from Stage 1 to
Stage 3 and loans with gross carrying amount of AMD 25,569 thousand to be reclassified from Stage 2 to
Stage 3.

Measurement of CBA provision. The measurement of the provision of CBA is based on the application of
the following terms and regulations:

- the Organization is planning to recalculate the accrued interest amount in relation to violation of the
Art. 13 (1) of the RA Law “On Consumer Credits”, for the loans issued during the period from 1
January 2018 until July 20, 2020 taking for basis 365 days instead of 360 days;

- the Organization should perform recalculation of disbursement fees received and paid back to
customers for the loans issued from 1 January 2018 and which were repaid before maturity in relation
to the violation of Art. 10 (2) of the RA Law “On Consumer Credits” and clause 86 (3) of the regulation
8/05.

Based on the Organization’s assumptions, about 70% of the customers affected by the below mentioned
regulations breaches, will demand their amounts back. The remaining part are considered as dormant
clients.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Cash on hand 190,628 211,975
Correspondent accounts 534,066 492,519
724,694 704,494
Less: expected credit losses (7) (899)
Total cash and cash equivalent 724,687 703,595

A reconciliation of the Expected credit loss allowance by stages in accordance with IFRS 9 is as follows:

Stage 1 Total
Expected credit losses at January 1, 2019 238 238
Provision charge 661 661
Expected credit losses at December 31, 2019 899 899
Expected credit losses at January 1, 2020 899 899
Recovery (892) (892)
Expected credit losses at December 31, 2020 7 7

As at December 31, 2020 correspondent accounts are held with resident commercial banks, with 81.8% of
the balance held at three resident commercial banks. As at December 31, 2020 the Organization has not
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had any holdings in a single financial institution whose balance exceeded 10% of equity (December 31

2019: AMD nil).

6. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019
Loans customers at amortized cost 24,298,801 26,260,402
Less: Expected credit losses (4,488,569) (2,338,487)
Total loans to customers 19,810,232 23,921,915
Loans to customers comprise:
December 31, 2020
Expected credit
Expected credit losses on gross
Gross loans losses Net loans loans, %
Individual rural loans 13,159,094 (2,140,871) 11,018,223 16.3%
Individual business loans 6,792,891 (1,336,288) 5,456,603 19.7%
Consumer loans 4,346,816 (1,011,410) 3,335,406 23.3%
Total loans to customers 24,298,801 (4,488,569) 19,810,232 18.5%
December 31, 2019
Expected credit
Expected credit losses on gross
Gross loans losses Net loans loans, %
Individual rural loans 13,529,982 (1,033,545) 12,496,437 7.64%
Individual business loans 10,874,402 (1,109,612) 9,764,790 10.20%
Consumer loans 1,855,801 (195,286) 1,660,515 10.52%
Group loans* 41 (38) 3 92.68%
Rural group loans* 176 (6) 170 3.41%
Total loans to customers 26,260,402 (2,338,487) 23,921,915 8.90%

*These represent Group and Rural group loans that the Organization does not provide any longer as a
separate product line. The balances as at reporting date represent the remaining balances of the respective

product portfolio.

Loans to customers per industry groups are presented below:

December 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

Gross loan Gross loan Gross loan Gross loan

portfolio portfolio, % portfolio portfolio, %
Agriculture 13,695,466 56.36% 13,950,911 53.13%
Service 4,791,741 19.72% 5,025,840 19.14%
Trade 3,184,063 13.10% 4,000,782 15.24%
Production 849,593 3.50% 1,133,689 4.32%
Transport 769,154 3.17% 837,550 3.19%
Construction 90,927 0.37% 154,624 0.59%
Other 917,857 3.78% 1,157,006 4.41%
Gross loans to customers 24,298,801 100.00% 26,260,402 100.00%

The analysis of changes for loan expected credit losses is presented in the table below:
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Agriculture Trade Production Transport Construction Service Other Total

January 1, 2019 901,155 326,502 95,565 86,157 60,857 171,314 155,652 1,797,202

Provision 292,801

charge 491,827 152,049 44,559 41,347 16,671 8,967 1,048,221
Recovery 11,649

previously

written-off

loans 152,424 144,021 29,580 15,812 10,487 46,562 410,535
Write-off of (24,899)

loans to

customers (500,613) (196,161) (62,807) (63,641) (36,597) (92,125) (976,843)

Interest 20,216

income

adjustment on

Stage 3 loans 27,398 9,271 4,157 2,940 2,245 266 66,493
Foreign exchange (1,266)

differences (3,782) (1,085) (307) (227) (42) (412) (7,121)

December 31,
2019 1,068,409 434,597 110,747 82,388 53,621 469,815 118,910 2,338,487

Provision charge 1,432,385 154,083 46,910 98,318 17,136 876,630 28,051 2,653,513

Recovery
previously
written-off loans 147,782 88,461 28,113 9,996 9,790 10,199 34,423 328,764

Write-off of
loans to
customers (520,008) (186,216) (56,379) (50,011) (34,204)  (169,008) (100,112)  (1,115,938)

Interest income
adjustment on
Stage 3 loans 62,719 21,967 2,661 2,749 1,198 37,866 498 129,658

Foreign exchange
differences 75,269 21,878 5,606 5,215 2,336 38,781 5,000 154,085

December 31,
2020 2,266,556 534,770 137,658 148,655 49,877 1,264,283 86,770 4,488,569

Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements

The Organization closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as
it becomes more likely that the Organization will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit
losses. At December 31, 2020 and 2019 financial assets and related collateral held in order to mitigate
potential losses are shown below:
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31 December

31 December

2020 2019
Loans collateralised by movable property 2,272,897 2,292,870
Loans collateralised by non-movable property 3,881,761 4,506,473
Total secured loans 6,154,658 6,799,343
Unsecured loans — express loans 16,331,179 18,529,606
Total unsecured loans 16,331,179 18,529,606
Total loans 22,485,837 25,328,949
Accrued interest receivable 1,557,950 903,215
Origination and service fees, net 255,014 28,238
Less - Allowance for expected credit losses (4,488,569) (2,338,487)
Loans to customers 19,810,232 23,921,915

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 all loans to customers (100% of total portfolio) are granted to
individuals and companies operating in Republic of Armenia, which represents a significant geographical

concentration in one region.

For other disclosures on loans to customers (staging and etc.) see note 25.

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Communication

Leasehold devices and Office

improvements computers equipment Vehicles Other Total
At cost
January 1, 2019 325,950 454,729 323,652 76,599 211,133 1,392,063
Additions 8,566 44,216 12,905 1,227 4911 71,825
December 31,
2019 334,516 498,945 336,557 77,826 216,044 1,463,888
Additions 7,965 8,352 4,854 - 3,819 24,990
Write off (57,045) - - - - (57,045)
December 31,
2020 285,436 507,297 341,411 77,826 219,863 1,431,833
Accumulated
depreciation
January 1, 2019 221,356 277,683 280,416 76,599 189,341 1,045,395
Depreciation
charge 29,612 64,426 24,191 962 15,798 134,989
December 31,
2019 250,968 342,109 304,607 77,561 205,139 1,180,384
Depreciation
charge 26,181 64,655 14,578 116 7,617 113,147
Write off (40,426) - - - - (40,426)
December 31,
2020 236,723 406,764 319,185 77,677 212,756 1,253,105
Net book value
As at December
31, 2020 48,713 100,533 22,226 149 7,107 178,728
As at December
31, 2019 83,548 156,836 31,950 265 10,905 283,504
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the cost of fully depreciated assets that are still in use comprised AMD
889,537 thousand and AMD 766,070 thousand respectively.

The Organization did not have any pledged property and equipment as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Total

At cost

January 1, 2019 489,704 489,704

Additions 133,444 133,444

December 31, 2019 623,148 623,148

Additions 24,012 24,012

December 31, 2020 647,160 647,160

Accumulated amortization

January 1, 2019 201,060 201,060

Amortization charge 89,619 89,619

December 31, 2019 290,679 290,679

Amortization charge 102,890 102,890

December 31, 2020 393,569 393,569

Net book value

As at December 31, 2020 253,591 253,591

As at December 31, 2019 332,469 332,469
9. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Right-of-use assets Buildings Total

Cost

As at January 1, 2019 976,174 976,174

31 December 2019 976,174 976,174

Additions 147,809 147,809

Lease terminations (258,647) (258,647)

As at December 31, 2020 865,336 865,336

Accumulated depreciation

As at January 1, 2019 - -

Charge for the year 259,360 259,360

31 December 2019 259,360 259,360

Charge for the year 252,023 252,023

Lease terminations (93,959) (93,959)

As at December 31, 2020 417,424 417,424

Carrying amount

As at December 31, 2019 716,814 716,814

As at December 31, 2020 447,912 447,912

The Organization leases several buildings. The average lease term is 5 years.
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During 2020, with the view of expense optimization, the entity closed or replaced 14 branches. As a
result of which the derecognition of right of use assets in the amount of AMD 168,688 thousand take
place.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 25 and note 14.

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 252,023 259,360
Interest expense on lease liabilities 85,483 108,984
Expense relating to short-term leases - 1,083
Gain from lease concession 11,854 -
Gain from lease termination 15,336 -

The total cash outflow for leases amount to AMD 227,917 thousand.

Lease Liability

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019

Maturity analysis:
Year 1 257,238 336,036
Year 2 170,161 327,945
Year 3 100,694 327,945
Year 4 57,373 85,670
Year 5 23,979 -
Year 6 9,420 -
Year 7 7,134 -

625,999 1,077,596
Less: unearned interest (115,235) (292,678)

510,764 784,918
Analyzed as:
Non-current 305,322 558,537
Current 205,442 226,381

510,764 784,918

During 2020 as a consequence of COVID-19 pandemic outbreak concessions of lease payments were
granted to the Organization which have not been considered as lease modifications. As a result
concession gain of AMD 11,854 thousand was recognized in other income. Lease liability movements are

presented in note 14.
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10. OTHER ASSETS

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019

Other financial assets

Account receivable for money transfer systems 16,251 12,373
Other receivables 1,759 3,022
Total other financial assets 18,010 15,395
Other non-financial assets

Prepaid taxes (other than profit tax) and other liabilities to the budget 22,275 15,227
Repossessed assets 19,569 420
Prepayments for the goods and services 14,142 13,743
Inventory 8,735 15,439
Other 1,023 5,191
Total other assets 83,754 65,415

11. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Date of Maturity date  Annual coupon/ December 31, December 31,
ccy issue month/year interest rate % 2020 2019

Debt securities issued AMD 28/10/19 24/09/22 10.5 1,540,672 1,539,905
Debt securities issued AMD 09/01/19 20/12/21 10.5 1,405,265 1,405,493
Debt securities issued AMD 17/05/19 26/04/22 10.5 1,018,170 1,017,068
Debt securities issued usD 18/03/19 25/02/22 6 1,066,500 978,373
Total debt securities

issued 5,030,607 4,940,839

During 2019 year there were four iterations of the debt securities issued on the nominal amounts of AMD
1,500,000 thousand, AMD 1,400,000 thousand, AMD 1,000,000 thousand and USD 2,000 thousand in
accordance with the table below.

12. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Weighted Weighted
average average
nominal December 31, nominal December 31,
interest rate 2020 interest rate 2019

International financial institutions 8.20% 5,187,236 7.94% 11,173,532
FINCA Microfinance Holding 6.70% 1,934,683 - -
Central Bank of Armenia 6.40% 85,192 6.41% 100,776
Other financial institutions 9.60% 2,355,245 9.98% 1,239,648
Total other borrowed funds 9,562,356 12,513,956

As at December 31, 2020 the Organization has borrowings from seven financial institutions (December 31
2019: seven financial institutions) whose balances each exceed 10% of equity. The value of these
balances as at December 31, 2020 is AMD 8,874,137 thousand (December 31 2019: AMD 11,981,562

thousand).
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13.

The Organization is obligated to comply with financial covenants in relation to other borrowed funds.
These covenants include stipulated ratios, debt to equity ratios and various other financial performance

ratios.

As at December 31, 2020, the Organization breached certain financial covenants required by some of its
borrowing agreements with international financial institutions relating to the portfolio quality and the
positive profitability. The borrowed amounts as at reporting date, in respect of which the defaults had

taken place, amounted to AMD 5,187,236 thousand.

For the purposes of the Organization’s liquidity position analysis as at December 31, 2020, the
Organization includes all the borrowings from international financial institutions as on demand as
according to agreements with international institutions there are cross default clauses, see Note 25.

Management believes, however, that these loans will be repaid according to their contractual terms and

the subsequent waivers will be obtained from the lenders.
These liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Other borrowed funds are to be repaid as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019
Year 1 8,577,753 7,543,095
Year 2 962,220 3,984,958
Year 3 17,858 972,478
Year 4 3,016 10,415
Year 5 1,508 3,010
9,562,355 12,513,956

OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019

Other financial liabilities:
CBA provision 240,000 -
Provision for business reorganization 39,890 -
Payables for services 12,499 47,645
Other - 7,344

292,389 54,989
Other non-financial liabilities:
Unused vacation reserve 164,624 213,717
Taxes payable, other than income tax 94,850 84,979
Other 20,546 7,590
Total other liabilities 572,409 361,275

After the planned inspection, the Central Bank of Armenia (CBA) has obliged the Organization to make
payments to its customers in relation to the recalculation of interest payable and overcharged
commission fees. Based on the inspection, the Organization estimated and booked provision in

accordance with the regulations described below in step plan.
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Under the step plan, the Organization should perform the following:

1. the Organization is planning to recalculate the accrued interest amount in relation to violation of the
Art. 13 (1) of the RA Law “On Consumer Credits”, for the loans issued during the period from 1
January 2018 until July 20, 2020 taking for basis 365 days instead of 360 days;

2. the Organization should perform recalculation of disbursement fees received and paid back to
customers for the loans issued from 1 January 2018 and which were repaid before maturity in
relation to the violation of Art. 10 (2) of the RA Law “On Consumer Credits” and clause 86 (3) of the
regulation 8/05.

The amounts shall be returned to clients until December 31, 2021.

Provision for restructuring represents expenses the Organization will incur in 2021 related to the closure
of 9 branches and staff cost cutting.
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14. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Organization’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Organization’s statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Non-cash changes

New leases,
Proceeds - cash Repayments — Interest Foreign currency modification and
January 1, 2020 flows cash flows payment Interest expense revaluation rent concessions December 31, 2020
Other borrowed funds 12,513,956 10,066,256 (13,832,651) (936,968) 949,063 802,700 - 9,562,356
Debt securities issued 4,940,839 - - (467,342) 470,962 86,148 - 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 784,918 - (227,917) (88,211) 85,483 - (43,509) 510,764
18,239,713 10,066,256 (14,060,568) (1,492,521) 1,505,508 888,848 (43,509) 15,103,727

Non-cash changes

Proceeds - Repayments - cash Foreign currency
January 1, 2019 cash flows flows Interest payment Interest expense revaluation December 31, 2019
Other borrowed funds 12,808,713 31,539,215 (31,726,406) (981,726) 972,808 (98,648) 12,513,956
Debt securities issued 4,927,646 3,462,754 (3,409,407) (425,656) 385,866 (364) 4,940,839
Lease liabilities 976,174 - (199,346) (100,894) 108,984 - 784,918
18,712,533 35,001,969 (35,335,159) (1,508,276) 1,467,658 (99,012) 18,239,713

(i) The cash flows from bank loans, loans from related parties and other borrowings make up the net amount of proceeds from borrowings and repayments of
borrowings in the statement of cash flows.
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15.

16.

EQUITY

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 Organization’s registered, issued, outstanding and fully paid share
capital consisted of 490,596 ordinary shares respectively with par value of AMD 10,000 each. The holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at the annual and general meetings of the Organization.

The share capital of the Organization was contributed by the shareholders in AMD and they are entitled
to dividends and any capital distribution in AMD.

The Organization’s distributable reserves among shareholders are limited to the amount of its
accumulated retained earnings as disclosed in its statutory accounts. Non-distributable reserves are
represented by a reserve fund, which is created as required by the statutory regulations. The reserve
fund of the Organization is formed by compulsory annual deductions in the amount of 5% equivalent to
AMD 46,202 thousand (2019: AMD 46,599 thousand) from net IFRS profits of the Organization until the
fund reaches 15% of its Share capital. The movement of the reserve is presented in the retained earnings
of the Organization.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 Organization’s reserve capital is AMD 343,967 thousand and AMD
297,765 thousand. The reserve fund may be used to cover losses of the Organization, as well as for the
retirement of debentures and redemption of stock of the Organization in the event that no other funds
are available. Reserve fund shall not be used for any other purposes.

In 2020 the Organization declared and paid dividends AMD 496,000 thousand based on the prior years
accumulated profits (2019: AMD 1,415,401 thousand). Withholding tax of 5% is included in the amount.

NET INTEREST INCOME

2020 2019
Interest income
- Loans to customers 6,405,799 6,881,561
- Investment securities at amortized cost 76,989 75,678
- Cash and cash equivalents 17,039 4,519
- Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - 12
Total interest income 6,499,827 6,961,770
Interest expense
- Other borrowed funds (959,147) (1,006,329)
- Debt securities issued (470,962) (391,061)
- Lease liability (85,483) (108,984)
- Repurchase agreements (20,622) (38,470)
- Interest expense from financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss - (12)
Total interest expense (1,536,214) (1,544,856)
Net interest income before impairment losses on interest bearing assets 4,963,613 5,416,914

The penalties are calculated on the accrual basis and are included on overdue principle and interest
amounts. In 2020 the amount is AMD 532,403 thousand (2019: the amount is AMD 427,362 thousand).
As the main part of overdue amounts are loans in stage 3, there is ECL calculated over the penalty
accrued as of December 31, 2020 on the amount of AMD 412,765 thousand (2019: AMD 290,962
thousand).
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17. NET GAIN FROM FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS

2020 2019
Gain from foreign exchange trading, net 127,164 169,018
Foreign exchange translation loss, net (37,764) (8,471)
Total net gain from foreign exchange operations 89,400 160,547
18. OTHER GAINS
2020 2019
Gain from lease termination 15,336 -
Gain from lease concession 11,854 -
Income from grant 7,749 9,355
Other income 32,500 25,164
Total other gains 67,439 34,519
19. OTHER LOSSES
2020 2019
CBA provision (Note 13) (240,000) -
Expense related to reorganization (55,699) -
Penalty on early repayment of the loan (20,319)
Write-off of leasehold improvements (16,619) -
Other expense (7,775)
Total other expenses (340,412)
Expenses related to reorganization include provision for the closure of 9 branches and termination
benefits to staff amounting to AMD 39,890 thousand and direct write off from prepayments made
amounting to AMD 15,809 thousand.
20. INCOME TAXES

The Organization measures and records its current income tax payable and its tax bases in its assets and
liabilities in accordance with the tax regulations of the Republic of Armenia where the Organization
operates, which may differ from IFRS.

The Organization is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility of
certain expenses and certain income being treated as non-taxable for tax purposes.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temporary
differences as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 relate mostly to different methods/timing of income and
expense recognition as well as to temporary differences generated by tax — book bases’ differences for
certain assets.

The tax rate used for the reconciliations below is the corporate tax rate of 18% payable by corporate
entities in the Republic of Armenia on taxable profits (as defined) under tax law in that jurisdiction.

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 comprise:
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December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Loans to customers (163,499) (332,456)
Investment securities at amortized cost - 860
Property and equipment 26,913 25,252
Leases 11,125 8,171
Other assets (1,100) (887)
Other borrowed funds 4,066 (2,968)
Other liabilities 89,173 49,333
Net deferred tax liability (33,322) (252,695)
The effective tax rate reconciliation is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:
2020 2019
(Loss)/profit before income tax (1,050,090) 1,145,271
Tax at the statutory tax rate (18%) (189,016) 229,054
Tax effect of permanent differences 17,887 20,263
Tax effect of change in income tax rates - (28,086)
Prior years related current tax expense 22,611 -
Income tax (benefit)/expense (148,518) 221,231
Current income tax expense 48,244 130,307
Current income tax expense — prior years 22,611 -
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the current year (219,373) 90,924
Income tax (benefit)/expense (148,518) 221,231
Deferred income tax liabilities 2020 2019
As at January 1 — deferred tax liabilities (252,695) (161,771)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences recognized in profit or loss 219,373 (119,010)
Tax effect of change in income tax rates - 28,086
As at December 31 - deferred tax liabilities (33,322) (252,695)
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21.

22.

OPERATING EXPENSES

2020 2019
Royalty (154,882) (178,716)
Information technology expenses (150,379) (139,751)
Professional services (78,706) (59,485)
Taxes, other than income tax (71,262) (58,956)
Insurance (67,841) (70,708)
Communications (56,777) (54,723)
Office supplies (41,018) (42,231)
Utilities (38,641) (38,387)
Security expenses (23,406) (23,060)
Financial system mediator expenses (18,020) (18,208)
Bank charges (15,624) (34,301)
Cash collector’s service expenses (10,671) (16,879)
Business trip expens (8,983) (27,733)
Property and equipment maintenance (8,838) (32,767)
Advertising costs (8,702) (33,884)
Tax and other tax fines and penalties (3,867) (8,745)
Training costs (3,011) (8,544)
Representative expenses (1,005) (11,854)
Short-term leases - (1,083)
Other expenses (50,458) (64,810)
Jotal operating expenses (812.001) (924,825)

Royalty is being paid as percentage of operating income and may vary from 1.5%-2% depending on the
size of the operating income. Withholding tax is being paid on it.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

22.1. Capital commitments

The Organization had no capital commitments as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
22.2. Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Organization are received from
customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no material non-accrued losses will be
incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

22.3.Taxation

Commercial legislation of the Republic of Armenia, including tax legislation, may allow more than one
interpretation. In addition, there is a risk of tax authorities making arbitrary judgments of business
activities. If a particular treatment, based on management’s judgment of the Organization’s business
activities, was to be challenged by the tax authorities, the Organization may be assessed additional taxes,
penalties and interest. Generally, taxpayers are subject to tax audits with respect to three calendar years
preceding the year of the audit.
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23. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

23.1. Fair value of the Organization’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Organization’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

Fair value as at

Relationship of

Significant unobservable

Financial assets/ December 31, December 31, Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to

Liabilities 2020 2019 hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) fair value
Discounted cash flows,
Future cash flows are
estimated
based on forward
exchange rates
and contract forward
Financial assets at fair rates,
value through discounted at a rate that
profit or loss: reflects the credit risk of

- currency swaps 152 - Level 2 various counterparties N/A N/A

23.2. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

Because of the short-term nature of most financial assets and financial liabilities, management believes
that their carrying amounts approximate their fair values. For certain other financial assets and financial
liabilities, management uses discounted cash flows to estimate fair values. Interest rates used to discount
these estimated cash flows are based on the government bond yield curve at the reporting date plus
currency, maturity of the instrument and credit risk of the counterparty.

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial Assets

- Loans to customers 19,810,232 20,012,388 23,921,915 24,849,723
- Investment securities - - 1,191,045 1,240,074
Financial Liabilities

- Debt securities issued 5,030,607 5,135,286 4,940,839 5,016,789
- Other borrowed funds 9,562,356 9,536,981 12,513,956 12,484,245
- Lease liabilities 510,764 506,813 784,918 786,528
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24.

December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans to customers - - 20,012,388 20,012,388
Financial Liabilities
Debt securities issued - 5,135,286 - 5,135,286
Other borrowed funds - - 9,536,981 9,536,981
Lease liabilities - - 506,813 506,813
December 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans to customers - - 24,849,723 24,849,723
Investment securities 1,240,074 - - 1,240,074
Financial Liabilities
Debt securities issued - 5,016,789 - 5,016,789
Other borrowed funds - - 12,484,245 12,484,245
Lease liabilities - - 786,528 786,528

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories
above have been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects
the credit risk of counterparties.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Organization manages its capital to ensure that the Organization will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.

The CBA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Organization. Under the current capital
requirements set by the CBA, universal credit organizations as at December 31, 2020 have to maintain a
minimum share capital of AMD 150,000 thousand (December 31, 2019: AMD 150,000 thousand).

As per CBA regulatory requirement, which became effective in 2011, credit organizations conducting
foreign exchange transactions in cash other than for the purpose of accepting loan repayments; have to
maintain a ratio of capital to risk weighted assets (statutory capital ratio) above the prescribed minimum
level. In 2013 the Organization changed its charter so that it has the right to conduct foreign exchange
cash transactions as a separate activity, thus the Organization has to measure and comply with this
statutory capital requirements and capital ratio. As at December 31, 2020, total capital requirements was
AMD 1,000,000 thousand (December 31, 2019: AMD 1,000,000 thousand) and minimum capital ratio level
was 12% (December 31, 2019:12%).

The calculation of statutory capital ratio based on requirements set by the Central Bank of Armenia is as
follows:
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25.

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Unaudited Unaudited
Primary capital 5,714,480 5,752,292
Additional capital - 24,253
Total capital 5,714,480 5,776,545
Risk weighted assets 21,141,652 24,716,011
Statutory capital ratio (%) 27.03% 23.37%
Minimum required statutory capital ratios 12.00% 12.00%
Compliance with the minimum share capital and total capital No breaches No breaches
requirements during the year during the year

The Management Board reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. The adequacy of the
Organization’s capital is set and monitored using the ratios established by CBA. As a part of this review,
the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Board, the Organization balances its overall capital structure through payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. In
addition, the Organization manages its capital in order to meet covenant requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Management of risk is fundamental to the Organization’s business and is an essential element
of the Organization’s operations. The main risks inherent to the Organization’s operations are those
related to;

° Credit exposures;
° Liquidity risk;
. Market risk.

The Organization recognizes that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk management processes
in place. To enable this, the Organization has established a risk management framework, whose main
purpose is to protect the Organization from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the determination of the Organization’s risk
management objectives, policies and oversight of the Organization’s risk management framework. The
overall objective of the Board of Directors is to set polices that seek to reduce risks as far as possible
without unduly affecting the Organization's competitiveness and flexibility. Whilst retaining ultimate
responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure
the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Organization.

The Organization’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Organization, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Organization, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

Credit, market and liquidity risks both at the portfolio and transactional levels are managed and
controlled through a system of Credit Committees and an Asset and Liability Management Committee
(ALCO). Risk Committee is responsible for developing, monitoring risk management policies and
exercising control over the risk in the legislation and regulatory arena and assesses its influence on the
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Organization’s activity. This approach allows the Organization to minimize potential losses from the
investment climate fluctuations in the Republic of Armenia.

There have been no significant changes in the risk management department since year-end or in any risk
management policies.

Credit risk management.

The Organization is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The main business of the Organization is to provide micro-loans. Respectively credit risk is of crucial
importance in the Micro Financing Organization risk management. To avoid significant financial damage
caused by this the Organization uses various methods to identify and manage effectively the credit risks.

The Microfinance industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its loans to customers and bank
deposits. With regard to the loans to customers this risk exposure is concentrated within the Republic of
Armenia. The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness
guidelines established by the Organization’s risk management policy are not breached.

Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority. These processes are
performed by the Credit Risk Department, Credit Committee and the Organization’s Management Board.
Before any application is approved by the Credit Committee, all recommendations on credit processes
(borrower’s limits approved, or amendments made to loan agreements, etc.) are reviewed and approved
by the Credit Risk Department. Daily risk management is performed by the Head of Credit Risk
Management Department.

The Organization’s credit policy is determined by the number of internal policies and procedures, where
all the related requirements, along with respective controls are clearly defined, including loan
disbursement, monitoring of delinquent loans, etc.

The Organization continuously monitors the performance of individual credit exposures and regularly
reassesses the creditworthiness of its customers. The review is based on the customer’s most recent
monitoring and financial analysis, as well as other information submitted by the borrower, or otherwise
obtained.

Apart from individual customer analysis the credit portfolio is periodically assessed by the Internal Control
department with regard to credit concentration and market risks.

The Credit Committee is the analytical body responsible for analyzing the information in the loan
applications, assessing and reducing the credit risks as far as possible. The Credit Committee is the
independent body within the Organization authorized to make the final decision about financing or
rejecting the loan application.

Accuracy and correctness of information presented to the Credit Committee is the responsibility of the
credit officer, who fills in the initial application after the due scrutiny of the applicant’s business and its
credit risks. Eventually the Credit Committee members assess the application against the established
criteria (applicant’s credit history, financial condition, competitive ability, etc.).

Each branch is required to implement Organization's credit policies and procedures, with credit approval
authorities set by the internal regulations. Each branch manager reports on all credit related matters to
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Management. Each branch is responsible for the quality and performance of its credit portfolio and for
monitoring and controlling all credit risks in its portfolio. Internal Audit and Internal Control Departments
undertake regular audits of branches and Organization's credit processes.

The Organization’s Credit Risk Department reviews ageing analysis of outstanding loans and follows up past
due balances. Management therefore considers it to be appropriate to provide ageing and other
information about credit risk.

The Organization structures the level of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry and geographical segments.
Limits on the level of credit risk by a borrower and a product (by industry sector, by region) are approved
periodically by the Management Board. The exposure to any one borrower is further restricted by sub-
limits covering on and off-balance sheet exposures which are set by the Credit Committee. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily to ensure that the credit limits and creditworthiness
guidelines established by the Organization’s risk management policy are not breached.

Where appropriate, and in the case of most loans, the Organization obtains collateral and personal
guarantee. However, a significant portion of loans is personal lending, where no such facilities can be
obtained. Such risks are monitored on a continuous basis and are subject to annual or more frequent
reviews.

Credit risk measurement

(a) Loans and advances (incl. loan commitments and guarantees)

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of
models, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of
time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood of
defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties. For risk
management reporting purposes, the Organization considers and consolidates loan size as an element of
credit risk exposure. The Organization measures credit risk using Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at
Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used for the purposes of
measuring ECL under IFRS 9.

Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 9 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition as summarized below:

. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1’ and
has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Organization.

° If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.
. If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3'.

° Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
basis.
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. A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-
looking information.

. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

Write-off
When periodic collective historical recovery analysis indicates that the Organization does not expect
significant additional recoveries after certain months in default (“MID”), it is the policy of the

Organization to write-off loans on a collective basis.

Amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the reporting period and are still
subject to enforcement activity is AMD 1,078,551 thousand.

Grouping with similar credit risk characteristics
Financial assets are split into two segments for the purposes of PD calculation:

. Small (for loan amounts up to AMD 500,000 (equivalent to USD 957)
° Medium and large (for loan amounts above AMD 500,000 or equivalent to USD 957)

The segments above reflect the level of assessment of client creditworthiness, with the Large segment
exhibiting a comparatively stricter assessment. The historical default rate is utilized as an indicator of
strictness, such that the difference in default rates is maximized between the segments.

Rating Model

All available information (product groups, industries, etc.) are used to derive internal ratings for each
segment. In such a way groups with the same risk characteristics are created and used afterwards to
adjust the PD curve of the segment.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

° Probability of default (PD);
° Loss given default (LGD);
° Exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical
data.

Probability of default (PD)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of
default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.
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The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity profile
looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime
of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to be the same
across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.
Probability of Default is modeled by survival function, which is based on hazard rates.

Hazard rates are obtained by Cox proportional hazard model, which is a semi-parametric model, it uses
assumed simple form for effect of covariates and the exact value of free parameters is estimated with
partial likelihood. The baseline is obtained by non-parametrical methods. A macroeconomic overlay can
be directly included into the hazard function through a time-dependent variable. From obtained hazard
rates, then Point-in-Time (“PiT”) PD is derived, i.e. marginal PDs assigned to a respective date.
Observation period for modeling cox hazard rates is 5 years.

Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 that would result from
reasonably possible changes in the macroeconomic parameter from the actual assumptions used in the
Organization’s economic variable assumptions.

2020
Macro parameter used GDP growth rate
% change of macro parameter for the sensitivity test 50% No change -50%
Loan portfolio:
Small 1,267,081 1,268,779 1,270,500
Medium and large 3,214,378 3,219,790 3,225,246
Total loan portfolio 4,481,459 4,488,569 4,495,746
Total 4,481,459 4,488,569 4,495,746
2019
Macro parameter used GDP
% change of macro parameter for the sensitivity test 11% No change -17%
Loan portfolio:
Small 622,023 622,034 622,046
Medium and large 1,716,333 1,716,453 1,716,647
Total loan portfolio 2,338,356 2,338,487 2,338,693
Other financial institutions - 4,777 -
Total 2,338,356 2,343,264 2,338,693

Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Organization estimates LGD parameters
based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD model
considers cash recoveries only. LGD is calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the EIR as the
discounting factor.

Secured loans utilize collateral values, whereas unsecured and guaranteed loans are using recovery rates.

Exposure at default (EAD)

EAD is based on the amounts the Organization expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next
12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Organization incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the

credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of
ECL.

The Organization has identified and documented the key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for the
portfolio using an analysis of historical data, has assessed the impact of macro-economic variables on PD
and recovery rate. The macro-economic variable which was involved in the analysis is a real growth rate
of GDP.

The table below summarizes the principal macroeconomic indicators included in the economic scenarios
used on December 31, 2020, for the years 2021 to 2025:

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Nominal GDP growth rate, % Baseline 5.98% 8.14% 8.38% 8.93% 9.02%

Credit quality of loans to customers

The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as of December 31,

2020:

Loan portfolio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross Carrying Amount

Current 14,291,911 1,617,782 401,753 16,311,446

Past due 1-30 days 9,788 1,146,962 67,031 1,223,781

Past due 31-60 days - 459,574 89,774 549,348

Past due 61-90 days - 734,662 111,006 845,668

Past due more than 90 days - - 5,368,558 5,368,558
14,301,699 3,958,980 6,038,122 24,298,801

Expected credit losses (363,635) (765,031) (3,359,903) (4,488,569)

Total loan portfolio 13,938,064 3,193,949 2,678,219 19,810,232

The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as of December 31,

2019:

Loan portfolio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross Carrying Amount

Current 22,306,800 498,172 217,431 23,022,403

Past due 1-30 days - 237,646 25,781 263,427

Past due 31-60 days - 146,876 7,229 154,105

Past due 61-90 days - 79,437 102,405 181,842

Past due more than 90 days - - 2,638,625 2,638,625
22,306,800 962,131 2,991,471 26,260,402

Expected credit losses (282,736) (157,910) (1,897,841) (2,338,487)

Total loan portfolio 22,024,064 804,221 1,093,630 23,921,915

Other Financial Instruments

Gross Carrying Amount 1,899,417 - - 1,899,417
Expected credit losses (4,777) - - (4,777)
1,894,640 - - 1,894,640
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The table that follows shows transfers of loans gross carrying amounts in AMD thousand between stages
as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Loans to customers at amortized cost
Gross carrying amount as at

January 1, 2019 22,479,341 1,171,476 2,323,292 25,974,109
Changes in the gross carrying amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (2,815,073) 2,815,073 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1,032,020 (1,032,020) - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1,689,674) 1,689,674 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 37,137 (37,137) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (2,525) - 2,525 -
New financial instruments originated or purchased 22,460,600 - - 22,460,600
Repayment of principal amount (20,885,861) (213,205) (34,019) (21,133,085)
Changes in interest accrual 728,634 (23,930) 136,235 840,939
Modification of contractual cash flows of financial

instruments (6,660) (13,498) (14,099) (34,257)
Derecognition during the period (573,232) (80,328) (90,080) (743,640)
Write-offs - - (976,843) (976,843)
Foreign exchange differences (110,444) (8,900) (8,077) (127,421)
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2019 22,306,800 962,131 2,991,471 26,260,402
Changes in the gross carrying amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (12,864,445) 12,864,445 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 4,484,393 (4,484,393) - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (4,055,158) 4,055,158 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 52,154 (52,154) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (53,486) - 53,486 -
New financial instruments originated or purchased 16,533,357 - - 16,533,357
Repayment of principal amount (13,481,792) (378,307) (306,383) (14,166,482)
Changes in interest accrual 593,608 50,368 503,509 1,147,485
Modification of contractual cash flows of financial

instruments 82,642 (8,161) (2,794) 71,687
Derecognition during the period (3,740,132) (1,371,486) (203,820) (5,315,438)
Write-offs - - (1,175,981) (1,175,981)
Foreign exchange differences 440,754 327,390 175,627 943,771
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2020 14,301,699 3,958,983 6,038,119 24,298,801
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2020 (363,634) (765,031) (3,359,904) (4,488,569)

The table that follows shows transfers of loans loan loss allowances in AMD thousand between stages as
of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020:
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Loss allowance — Loans to customers at amortized

cost
Loss allowance as at January 1, 2019 248,162 169,556 1,379,484 1,797,202
Changes in the loss allowance amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (49,227) 49,227 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 305,535 (305,535) - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (567,028) 567,028 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 18,569 (18,569) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (61) - 61 -
New financial instrument originated or purchased 494,642 - - 494,642
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs and Modification of

contractual cash flows of financial instrument (588,244) 797,848 960,818 1,170,422
Derecognition during the period (126,546) (3,450) (9,819) (139,815)
Write-offs - - (976,843) (976,843)
Foreign exchange differences (1,525) (1,277) (4,319) (7,121)
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2019 282,736 157,910 1,897,841 2,338,487
Changes in the loss allowance amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (335,573) 335,573 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 518,432 (518,432) - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1,532,827) 1,532,827 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 29,710 (29,710) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (4,996) - 4,996 -
New financial instrument originated or purchased 494,327 - - 494,327
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs and Modification of

contractual cash flows of financial instrument (61,596) 2,328,015 1,127,784 3,394,203
Derecognition during the period (535,864) (77,398) (163,333) (776,595)
Write-offs - - (1,115,938) (1,115,938)
Foreign exchange differences 6,168 42,480 105,437 154,085
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2020 363,634 765,031 3,359,904 4,488,569

During the years ended December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Organization modified the contractual cash
flows on certain loans to customers. All such loans were transferred to at least Stage 2 with a loss
allowance measured at an amount equal lifetime expected credit losses.

In respect of loans modified during the year, the amortized cost immediately before the loan was
modified and the resulting gain or loss arising from the modification is set out below

2020
Amortized cost before modification 12,342,547
Impairment allowance (2,014,439)
Net modification loss (155,631)
Net loans to customers 10,172,477

As at 31 December 2020 there are no any loans that have been previously modified, when they were in
Stage 2/3, which are now categorized as Stage 1.The gross carrying value of loans that have previously
been modified, when they were in Stage 2/3, which are now categorized as Stage 1, with loss allowance
measured at an amount equal to 12 months expected losses held as at 31 December 2019 was AMD
1,032,076 thousand.

Renegotiated loans and advances. Loans and advances are generally renegotiated either as part of
an ongoing customer relationship or in response to an adverse change in the circumstances
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of the borrower. In the latter case, renegotiation can result in an extension of the due date of payment or
repayment plans under which the Organization offers a concessionary rate of interest to genuinely
distressed borrowers. This will result in the asset continuing to be overdue and will be individually
impaired where the renegotiated payments of interest and principal will not recover the original carrying
amount of the asset. In other cases, renegotiation will lead to a new agreement, which is treated

as a new loan.

The table below shows the carrying amount of renegotiated financial assets, by class:

December 31, December 31,
Financial asset class 2020 2019
Loans to customers 4,156,230 1,384,939

The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its loans to customers and interbank
deposits. With regard to the loans to customers this risk exposure is concentrated within the (country).
The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness
guidelines established by the Organization’s risk management policy are not breached.

Off-balance sheet risk. The Organization applies fundamentally the same risk management policies for
off-balance sheet risks as it does for its on-balance sheet risks.

Investment securities.

The table that follows provides information on the credit quality of the investment securities at amortized
cost by stages in accordance with IFRS 9 :

2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Investment securities at amortized cost 1,194,923 - - 1,194,923
Total gross carrying amount 1,194,923 - - 1,194,923
Loss allowance (3,878) - - (3,878)
Carrying amount 1,191,045 - - 1,191,045
Stage 1 Total

Expected credit loss at January 1, 2019 5,005 5,005

Recovery (1,127) (1,127)

Expected credit loss at December 31, 2019 3,878 3,878

Expected credit loss at January 1, 2019 3,878 3,878

Recovery (3,878) (3,878)

Expected credit loss at December 31, 2019 - -

As at December 31, 2019 investment securities of AMD 1,194,923 thousand were pledged against
Organization’s liabilities under repurchase agreements. The Eurobonds beared 6.90% (1 Eurobond)
nominal interest and matured in the year of 2020.
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Geographical concentration. The geographical concentration of the Organization’s assets and liabilities
as at December 31, 2020 is set out below:

Republic of OECD
Armenia countries Other Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 724,687 - - 724,687
Loans to customers 19,810,232 - - 19,810,232
Other financial assets 18,010 - - 18,010
Total non-derivative financial assets 20,552,929 - - 20,552,929
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other borrowed funds 2,360,552 7,121,993 79,811 9,562,356
Debt securities issued 5,030,607 - - 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 510,764 - - 510,764
Other financial liabilities 281,086 11,303 - 292,389
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,183,009 7,133,296 79,811 15,396,116
Net position on non-derivative financial
instruments 12,369,920 (7,133,296) (79,811) 5,156,813
Net position 12,369,920 (7,133,296) (79,811) 5,156,813

Geographical concentration. The geographical concentration of the Organization’s assets and liabilities
as at December 31, 2019 is set out below:

Republic of OECD
Armenia countries Other Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 703,595 - - 703,595
Loans to customers 23,921,915 - - 23,921,915
Investment securities at amortized cost 1,191,045 - - 1,191,045
Other financial assets 15,395 - - 15,395
Total non-derivative financial assets 25,831,950 - - 25,831,950
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Liabilities under repurchase agreements 1,223,359 - - 1,223,359
Other borrowed funds 1,340,415 11,028,287 145,254 12,513,956
Debt securities issued 4,940,839 - - 4,940,839
Lease liabilities 784,918 - - 784,918
Other financial liabilities 43,686 11,303 - 54,989
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,333,217 11,039,590 145,254 19,518,061
Net position on non-derivative financial
instruments 17,498,733 (11,039,590) (145,254) 6,313,889
Net position 17,498,733 (11,039,590) (145,254) 6,313,889

The Organization enters into numerous transactions where the counterparties that are not rated by
international rating agencies. The Organization has developed internal models, which allow it to
determine the creditability of counterparties.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management. Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet borrowed
funds withdrawals and other financial commitments associated with financial instruments as they actually
fall due.

The Organization's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Organization's reputation.

The ALCO controls these types of risks by means of maturity analysis and determining the Organization’s
strategy for the next financial period. In order to manage liquidity risk, the Organization performs daily
monitoring of future expected cash flows on clients’ operations, which is a part of assets/liabilities
management process. Current liquidity is managed by Treasurer, so Treasury maintains a portfolio of
short-term liquid assets, largely made up of short-term deposits, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is
maintained for current liquidity support and cash flow optimization.

An analysis of liquidity and interest rate risk is presented in the following table. The presentation below is
based upon the information provided internally to key management personnel of the Organization.

The borrowed amounts as at reporting date, in respect of which the defaults had taken place, amounting
AMD 5,187,236 thousand have been classified on demand. However, as at December 31, 2020 and
subsequent to the reporting date, the Organization did not receive any notices on termination of further
funding or notifications with claims of immediate repayment of any loans from the lenders. The
Management of the Organization is of belief, however, that these loans will be repaid according to their
contractual terms and the subsequent waivers will be obtained from the lenders
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December 31, 2020

Weighted average

effective interest Up to 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to December 31, 2020

rate 1 month 3 months 1year 5 years Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Fixed interest rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 2.40% 534,059 - - - 534,059
Loans to customers 32.16% 730,784 1,441,236 6,692,602 10,945,610 19,810,232
Total fixed interest bearing financial assets 1,264,843 1,441,236 6,692,602 10,945,610 20,344,291
Non-interest bearing financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 190,628 - - - 190,628
Other financial assets 18,010 - - - 18,010
Total non-interest bearing financial assets 208,638 - - - 208,638
Total non-derivative financial assets 1,473,481 1,441,236 6,692,602 10,945,610 20,552,929
Non-derivative financial liabilities and commitments
Fixed interest rate instruments
Other borrowed funds 8.24% 6,613,231 879,811 1,055,172 49,660 8,597,874
Debt securities issued 9.50% - 64,883 1,424,538 3,541,186 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 12.90% 63,472 9,970 151,939 285,383 510,764
Total fixed interest bearing financial liabilities 6,676,703 954,664 2,631,649 3,876,229 14,139,245
Variable interest rate instruments
Other borrowed funds 6mo LIBOR +5.6% 29,539 - - 934,943 964,482
Total variable interest bearing financial liabilities 29,539 - - 934,943 964,482
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 292,389 - - - 292,389
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Total non-interest bearing financial liabilities 292,389 - - - 292,389
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 6,998,631 954,664 2,631,649 4,811,172 15,396,116
Interest sensitivity gap (5,441,399) 486,572 4,060,953 6,134,438
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap (5,441,399) (4,954,827) (893,874) 5,240,564
Derivative financial instruments
Gross settled - currency swaps 152 - - - 152
Liquidity gap (5,524,998) 486,572 4,212,892 6,134,438
Cumulative liquidity gap (5,524,998) (5,038,426) (825,534) 5,308,904
Derivative financial assets
Foreign exchange swap contracts
Inflow 522,742 - 522,742
Outflow (522,590) - (522,590)
December 31, 2019

Weighted

average

effective Up to 1 month to 3 months to 1yearto December 31, 2019

interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Fixed interest rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 4.00% 491,620 - - - 491,620
Loans to customers 33.60% 889,043 1,557,280 7,746,763 13,728,829 23,921,915
Investment securities at amortized cost 6.90% - - 1,191,045 - 1,191,045
Total fixed interest bearing financial assets 1,380,663 1,557,280 8,937,808 13,728,829 25,604,580
Non-interest bearing financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 211,975 - - - 211,975
Other financial assets 15,395 - - - 15,395
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Total non-interest bearing financial assets 227,370 - - - 227,370
Total non-derivative financial assets 1,608,033 1,557,280 8,937,808 13,728,829 25,831,950
Non-derivative financial liabilities and commitments
Fixed interest rate instruments
Other borrowed funds 6.80% 144,261 200,237 6,011,068 3,831,189 10,186,755
Debt securities issued 9.61% - 62,248 22,598 4,855,993 4,940,839
Lease liabilities 12.34% 8,091 38,664 179,626 558,537 784,918
Repurchased agreements 5.66% 1,223,359 - - - 1,223,359
Total fixed interest bearing financial liabilities 1,375,711 301,149 6,213,292 9,245,719 17,135,871
Variable interest rate instruments

6mo LIBOR
Other borrowed funds +5.6% - - 1,175,921 1,151,280 2,327,201
Total variable interest bearing financial liabilities - - 1,175,921 1,151,280 2,327,201
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 54,989 - - - 54,989
Total non-interest bearing financial liabilities 54,989 - - - 54,989
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 1,430,700 301,149 7,389,213 10,396,999 19,518,061
Interest sensitivity gap 4,952 1,256,131 1,548,595 3,331,830
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap 4,952 1,261,083 2,809,678 6,141,508
Liquidity gap 177,333 1,256,131 1,548,595 3,331,830
Cumulative liquidity gap 177,333 1,433,464 2,982,059 6,313,889

Cumulative liquidity gap. The tables above show the expected maturity analysis of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities at their carrying amounts and
based on their contractual maturities. The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period. Impaired loans
are included at their carrying amounts net of allowance for impairment and based on the expected timing of cash inflows.
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The following tables detail the Organization’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables

have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. It is not expected
that cash flows included in the table below could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

December 31, 2020

Weighted avrge 1 monthto 3 3 months to

effect. int.rate  Up to 1 month months 1 year 1 year to 5 years Total Carrying amount
Fixed interest
Rate instruments
Other borrowed funds 8.24% 6,626,255 893,004 1,097,525 53,467 8,670,251 8,597,874
Debt securities issued 9.50% - 110,105 1,762,105 3,786,392 5,658,602 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 12.90% 21,437 42,873 192,928 368,761 625,999 510,764
Total fixed interest bearing financial liabilities 6,647,692 1,045,982 3,052,558 4,208,620 14,954,852 14,139,245
Variable interest rate instruments

6mo LIBOR

Other borrowed funds +5.6% 31,958 - 31,094 971,756 1,034,808 964,482
Total variable interest bearing financial liabilities 31,958 - 31,094 971,756 1,034,808 964,482
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 292,389 - - - 292,389 292,389
Total non-interest bearing financial liabilities 292,389 - - - 292,389 292,389
Total financial liabilities 6,972,039 1,045,982 3,083,652 5,180,376 16,282,049 15,396,116
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December 31, 2019

Weighted avrge 1 monthto 3 3 months to

effect. int.rate  Up to 1 month months 1 year 1 year to 5 years Total Carrying amount
Fixed interest rate instruments
Other borrowed funds 6.80% 152,112 220,107 6,533,790 4,149,460 11,055,469 10,186,755
Debt securities issued 9.61% - 107,453 359,244 5,565,092 6,031,789 4,940,839
Lease liabilities 12.34% 36,419 53,898 245,719 741,560 1,077,596 784,918
Liabilities under repurchase agreements 5.66% 1,223,359 - - - 1,223,359 1,223,359
Total fixed interest bearing financial liabilities 1,411,890 381,458 7,138,753 10,456,112 19,388,213 17,135,871
Variable interest rate instruments
Other borrowed funds 8.03% - - 1,316,322 1,316,322 2,632,644 2,327,201
Total variable interest bearing financial liabilities - - 1,316,322 1,316,322 2,632,644 2,327,201
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 54,989 - - - 54,989 54,989
Total non-interest bearing financial liabilities 54,989 - - - 54,989 54,989
Total financial liabilities 1,466,879 381,458 8,455,075 11,772,434 22,075,846 19,518,061
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Organization’s earnings or capital or its ability to meet business objectives

will be adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of market rates or prices. Market risk covers
interest rate risk and currency risk that the Organization is exposed to. There have been no changes as to
the way the Organization measures risk or to the risk it is exposed or the manner in which these risks are

managed and measured.

Interest rate risk. The Organization’s cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates, and the fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates on both the value and cash flow risks.

Interest rate sensitivity. The Organization manages fair value interest rate risk through periodic
estimation of potential losses that could arise from adverse changes in market conditions. The
Organization’s management conducts monitoring of the Organization’s current financial performance,
estimates the Organization’s sensitivity to changes in fair value interest rates and its influence on the
Organization’s profitability.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 200 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Organization’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2020 would increase /decrease by AMD 26,004
thousand and (December 31, 2019: increase/decrease by AMD 45,990 thousand).

Currency risk. Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Organization is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The ALCO controls currency risk by management of the open currency position on the estimated basis of
USD devaluation and other macroeconomic indicators, which gives the Organization an opportunity to
minimize losses from significant currency rates fluctuations toward its national currency. The Treasurer
performs daily monitoring of the Organization’s open currency position.

The Organization’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at December 31, 2020 is presented in
the table below:
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AMD usD Other Total
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 409,351 278,283 37,053 724,687
Loans to customers 11,024,356 8,785,876 - 19,810,232
Other financial Assets 18,010 - - 18,010
Total non-derivative financial assets 11,451,717 9,064,159 37,053 20,552,929
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other borrowed funds 2,314,587 7,247,769 - 9,562,356
Other financial liabilities 155,449 136,940 - 292,389
Debt securities issued 3,964,107 1,066,500 - 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 510,764 - - 510,764
Total non-derivative financial
liabilities 6,944,907 8,451,209 - 15,396,116
Open balance sheet position 4,506,810 612,950 37,053 5,156,813
Derivative financial instruments
Gross settled - currency swaps 522,742 (522,590) - 152
Open position 5,029,552 90,360 37,053 5,156,965

The Organization’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at December 31, 2019 is presented
in the table below:

AMD usD Other Total
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 396,436 252,991 54,168 703,595
Loans to customers 12,467,684 11,454,231 - 23,921,915
Investment securities at amortized
cost - 1,191,045 - 1,191,045
Other financial Assets 15,395 - - 15,395
Total non-derivative financial assets 12,879,515 12,898,267 54,168 25,831,950
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other borrowed funds 1,529,441 10,984,515 - 12,513,956
Other financial liabilities 33,730 21,259 - 54,989
Debt securities issued 3,962,466 978,373 - 4,940,839
Lease liabilities 784,918 - - 784,918
Repurchase agreements 1,000,250 223,109 - 1,223,359
Total non-derivative financial
liabilities 7,310,805 12,207,256 - 19,518,061
Open balance sheet position 5,568,710 691,011 54,168 6,313,889
Open position 5,568,710 691,011 54,168 6,313,889

Currency risk sensitivity. The following table details the Organization’s sensitivity to a 20% increase and
decrease in the AMD against the USD, 20% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 20%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans where the denomination
of the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit before tax where the AMD strengthens 20% against USD.
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December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Impact on profit or loss (18,072) (138,202)
Impact on equity (18,072) (138,202)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis. The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption
while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and
other factors, It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts
should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Organization’s assets and liabilities are
actively managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Organization may vary at the time that any
actual market movement occurs. For example, the Organization’s financial risk management strategy aims
to manage the exposure to market fluctuations. As investment markets move past various trigger levels,
management actions could include selling investments, changing investment portfolio allocation and taking
other protective action. Consequently, the actual impact of a change in the assumptions may not have any
impact on the liabilities, whereas assets are held at market value in the statement of financial position. In
these circumstances, the different measurement bases for liabilities and assets may lead to volatility in
shareholder equity.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements to
demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Organization’s view of possible near-term market
changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty; and the assumption that all interest rates move in an
identical fashion.

Price risks. Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security or its issuer or
factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Organization is exposed to price risks of its
products, which are subject to general and specific market fluctuations.

The Organization manages price risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise from
adverse changes in market conditions and establishing and maintaining appropriate stop-loss limits and
margin and collateral requirements. With respect to undrawn loan commitments, the Organization is
potentially exposed to a loss of an amount equal to the total amount of such commitments. However, the
likely amount of a loss is less than that, since most commitments are contingent upon certain conditions
set out in the loan agreements.

Operational risk. Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or
external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have
legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Organization cannot expect to eliminate all
operational risks, but it endeavors to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring
and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorization
and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.
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26. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Related Total category as Total category as
party per the financial Related party per the financial
balances statements caption balances statements caption
Statement of financial position
Other borrowed funds (note 12)
Comprised of balances with:
- indirect shareholders 1,934,683 9,562,356 - -
Other liabilities (note 13)
Comprised of balances with:
- the parent - - (11,404) (361,275)
2020 2019
Related Total category as Total category as
party per the financial Related party per the financial

transactions statements caption

transactions statements caption

Statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income

Interest expense (note 16) 56,157 1,536,214 4,680 1,544,856
Other operating expenses
(note 21) 302,010 812,091 304,195 924,825
Comprised of transactions with:
- the parent (royalty and
management fees) 178,417 - 198,871 -
- other related parties (IT and
other services) 123,593 - 105,324 -
2020 2019
Total category Total category
as per as per
the financial the financial
Related party statements Related party statements
transactions caption transactions caption
Key management personnel compensation:
- short-term employee benefits 186,784 1,748,827 158,782 2,996,299

As at December 31, 2020 the Organization’s key management personnel consisted of 3 positions

(December 31, 2019: 3 positions).

27. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 7, 2021 the Organization signed a credit line agreement with local bank for AMD 800,000

thousand for 1 year period.

On February 19, 2021 the Organization signed a credit line agreement with another local bank for USD
1,500 thousand for 1 year period (in AMD 783,885 thousand).
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